
Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

November 13, 2025 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
a. Roll Call
b. Invocation – Councilmember Welch
c. Pledge of Allegiance – Councilmember Sadler
d. Adoption of Agenda

2. Consent Agenda
a. Resolution 2025-046– Financial statements for Three Months Ended September 30, 2025 (Attachment #1)

b. Approval of Draft Agenda Briefing minutes – October 6, 2025 (Attachment #2)

c. Approval of Draft Regular Meeting minutes – October 9, 2025 (Attachment #3)

3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
a. Presentations

i. I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live – Cliff Lewis (Attachment #4)

ii. Sheriff’s Office
iii. Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Audit Presentation – Monty Pendry, Partner with Gibson & Company, P.A.

4. Public Forum
a. Residents should register with the Town Clerk and limit their comments to three (3) minutes.
b. Written comments are also available.

5. Appointments

a. Lewisville Beautification Committee Appointments (2 vacancies) (Attachment #5)

6. Public Hearings

a. Ordinance 2025-31 – Public Hearing to Receive Public Comments and Consider Approval of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) L-170, for Three Proposed Text Amendments (Attachment #6)

b. Ordinance 2025-032 – Public Hearing to Receive Public Comments and Consider Approval of L-114, a 
Proposed Rezoning at 6732 Shallowford Road (PIN 5875-85-4964) for Heritage Crossing (Attachment #7)

7. New Business
a. Resolution 2025-047 to Call a Public Hearing – Lewisville/Clemmons Annexation Agreement (Attachment 

#8)

b. Resolution 2025-048 – Approve Resolution to Establish Administrative Group for Town Manager 
Evaluations (Attachment #9)

c. Ordinance 2025-034 – Amend Budget Ordinance 2025-001 for the Fred Moser Well Abandonments
(Attachment#10)

d. Ordinance 2025-033 – Amend Budget Ordinance 2025-001 for the Fred Moser Property Improvements
– Phase 1 (Attachment #11)

e. Ordinance 2025-035 – Amend Capital Project Ordinance for Lewisville-Vienna/Robinhood Roundabout 
(Attachment #12)

f. Resolution 2025-050 – Approve Lewisville-Vienna/Robinhood Roundabout Contract with BW 
Infrastructure, LLC in the Amount of $3,236,178.90 (Attachment #13)

g. Resolution 2025-049 – Approve Speed Cushions for the Shallowford Lakes Neighborhood (Attachment

#14)

h. Resolution 2025-042 – Approve Interlocal Agreement Amendment with Winston Salem/Forsyth 
County Utilities for the Lewisville Lift Station (Attachment #15) This item was postponed from the 
October 9, 2025 regular meeting of Council and the November 6, 2025 Town Council Briefing and 
Action meeting.



8. Administrative Reports
a. Upcoming events and closings

i. Annual Fitness Walk Challenge – November 1st – 30th

ii. Town Facilities Closed – November 27th & 28th – Thanksgiving
iii. Blood Drive – December 3 – 1PM – 5:30PM
iv. Holiday Open House – December 5 @ 4:30PM
v. Tree Lighting – December 5th – 7PM

b. Clerk Report
i. Staggered Terms Update

c. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on November 6, 2025
i. Resolution 2025-051 – Approve the Harper Road Lift Station Capacity
ii. Ordinance 2025-030 – Approve Ordinance to Amend Chapter 27 – to Add Section 27-3 for Street

Restrictions
9. For the Good of the Order

a. Public Comments
i. Residents should limit their comments to three (3) minutes.

ii. Written comment forms are also available.
b. Council Comments

10. Adjournment



RESOLUTION 2025-046 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF MONTHLY DISBURSEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the Finance Officer has presented the Town Council with the Revenue Statement 
Summary and the Encumbrances and Expenditure State Summary of figures for the three months 
ended September 30, 2025;  

WHEREAS, the Finance Officer did not report any unusual expenditures; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Lewisville Town Council accepts the Revenue 
Statement Summary and the Encumbrances and Expenditure Statement Summary for the three 
months ended September 30, 2025 and incorporated herein.  

Adopted this the 13th day of November 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Angela Lord, Town Clerk 

Attachment #1











October 6, 2025 

Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2025 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

6510 Shallowford Road 

Note:  This meeting was rescheduled from October 2, 2025 (6 PM) to October 6, 2025 (6:30 PM) 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:30 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro-

Tem Melissa Hunt and Councilmembers Ivan Huffman, Tom Lawson, Monte Long, Jane Welch,
and Ken Sadler. Also attending were Town Manager Stacy Tolbert (via zoom), Town Clerk Angie
Lord, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works Director Jon Hanna, Planning Director Lynn
Cochran, and Town Attorney Al Andrews.

B. Adoption of Agenda –Councilmember Huffman moved to approve the agenda.  The motion was
seconded by Councilmember Long and approved unanimously.

2. Introduction
A. Mayor Horn introduced Town Attorney Al Andrews of Brough Law Firm; distributed a handout

and shared information regarding Attorney Andrews’ credentials; and welcomed Attorney
Andrews to the Town of Lewisville. (Handout referenced is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

3. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. Fred Moser Property Update –Public Works Director Jon Hanna provided a map of the proposed

property layout; shared cost estimations for tree work, grading, electrical, light pole refurbishing,
erosion control, seeding, and light initial plantings for approximately $61,300; explained the need
for a formal abandonment of two wells; stated staff were working on getting estimates for on the
well work; and highlighted a multi-phased project.  Discussion took place regarding funding
allocations; liabilities associated with open wells on the property; and a collaborative effort with
the Board and Committees on future phases.  It was requested staff pursue the well abandonment
costs; and to bring the item before Council at the Thursday, October 9th Town Council meeting.
(Map referenced is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

B. Special Projects Review Committee Facility Use Exemption Requests
i. Lydia’s Hope – Town Clerk Angie Lord outlined the request by Lydia’s Hope for a facility

exemption at the Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC) for February 28, 2026 for
a Decades Prom fundraiser; explained the Special Projects Review Committee’s review; and
recommendation to deny due to the lack of proper documentation, and the organization is
Winston Salem based without a connection to the Town.  Committee members reiterated the
concerns; and the recommendation to deny.  It was the consensus of Council to support the
Committee recommendation to deny.  (Facility exemption request referenced is herein incorporated by 

reference into the minutes.)

ii. West Forsyth Christian Preschool – Town Clerk Lord outlined the request by West Forsyth
Christian Preschool for a facility exemption at the MAWCC for April 17, 2026 for a Gallery Hop
and Silent Auction; explained the Special Projects Review Committee review; and
recommendation to approve based on services to the Lewisville residents.  Committee
members echoed motions to approve; and it was the consensus of Council to support the
Committee recommendation to approve the facility request.  (Facility exemption request referenced 

is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

Attachment #2



October 6, 2025 

4. Items Requiring Action at Briefing
A. Motion for Moratorium on Facility Use Exemption Requests – Town Manager Tolbert spoke to the

Special Projects Review Committee meeting to review the policy and processes of the Non-Profit
Exemption and Funding Request Application; outlined proposed changes; highlighted concerns
for consistency; and spoke to the need for a moratorium while the proposed changes were
reviewed by Council and if approved, revisions made.
Councilmember and Chairwoman Welch spoke to a clear process; and budget allocations for the
Committee to use.  Discussion ensued regarding the current facility use exemption list.
Councilmember Welch moved to place a moratorium on Nonprofit Exemption and Funding
Request Applications.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Hunt and passed
unanimously.

5. Administrative Reports
A. Town Manager

i. Roundabout update – Town Manager Tolbert spoke to an upcoming bid opening; and to
project interest from contractors.

ii. Great Wagon Road Update – Town Manager Tolbert referenced the continued construction
efforts; sewer and asphalt challenges; spoke to a focus on the Shallowford Square area work;
and to the project timeline.

B. Town Clerk
i. Board and Committee Openings/Applications closed 9.30 - Town Clerk Angie Lord provided a

brief overview of the of the openings for the Lewisville Beautification Committee (LBC), the
Zoning Board of Adjustments (ZBOA), and the Municipal Service District (MSD); explained three
applications had been received for the two openings for the LBC; interviews would be
conducted next week; and stated applications were open for the ZBOA and MSD until the
position on each board was filled.

ii. Blood Drive – @ MAWCC – October 8 (1PM – 5PM)
iii. Hocus Pocus 2 Starlight Movie Night - @Shallowford Square – October 10
iv. Bulky Pick-Up Begins – October 13
v. Lewisville Election Candidate Forum - @ Mary Alice Warren Community Center – October 16,

2025 @ 7 PM (Hosted by the Lewisville Civic Club)
vi. Clean Sweep – October 18, 9AM – 12PM @ Town Annex
vii. Special Recycling Event – October 18, 10AM – 2PM – David McKee Street
viii. Shalloween - @ Shallowford Square – October 25 @ 1 PM – 2:30 PM
ix. Elected Orientation – @ Town Hall – December 4 – Photos @ 4 PM – Dinner @ 5:30 PM –

Orientation @ 6 PM (No Council Briefing)
C. Public Works Director

i. Shallowford Square Playground Update – Public Works Director Jon Hanna provided a
rendering received from Kaplan Early Learning Company; spoke to a custom design with the
Town logo; and a cost estimate of $315, 315.  Discussion took place regarding proposed play
structures; routine equipment inspections and maintenance; and challenges with a pour-in-
place ground covering if project was done on a phased approach.  (The rendering referenced is 

herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

ii. Marblehead Dam Update – Director Hanna provided an overview of the dam work;
commended the process and progress being made; highlighted the need for uncovered tree
removals; and stated it would be addressed with the MSD.

D. Operations Manager Quarterly Report -
i. Operations Manager Brian Moore shared the recent quarterly report for usage at the Mary

Alice Warren Community Center.  (The statistical data referenced is herein incorporated by reference into 

the minutes.)



 

October 6, 2025 

6. Tentative Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on October 9, 2025 
A. Consent Agenda 

i. Resolution 2025-031– Financial statements for Two Months Ended August 31, 2025 – 
Discussion took place regarding the 2024-2025 fiscal year audit; and tentative financial 
growth of approximately $900,000. 

ii. Approval of Agenda Briefing minutes – September 4, 2025  
iii. Approval of Regular Meeting minutes – September 11, 2025  

B. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations 
i. Presentations 

a. Sheriff’s Office 
C. Old Business - None 
D. New Business 

i. Motion to Approve the 2026 Meeting Schedule – Town Clerk Lord explained staff would 
present the tentative 2026 meeting schedule for consideration at the October 9 Town 
Council meeting. 

ii. Resolution 2025-034 to Call a Public Hearing to Receive Public Comments for the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) L-170 Text Amendments – Planning Director Lynn Cochran 
outlined proposed UDO amendments call for a public hearing. 

iii. Resolution 2025-040 to Call Public Hearing to Receive Public Comments to Rezone L-114 at 
6732 Shallowford Road (PIN 5875-85-4964) for Heritage Crossing – Planning Director 
Cochran outlined the call to hold a public hearing for the Heritage Crossing rezoning 
request. 

iv. Resolution 2025-041 – Award Street Paving Contract in the Amount of $81,563 – Public 
Works Director Hanna explained the needed street maintenance; and spoke to a 2024 
honored bid from American Spray Tech.  Discussion ensued regarding miles covered. 

v. Resolution 2025-042 – Interlocal Agreement Amendment with Winston Salem/Forsyth 
County Utilities for the Lewisville Lift Station – Town Manager Tolbert highlighted an original 
utilities agreement; spoke to construction and engineer inflation cost; to an updated 
agreement; to the need to update estimated cost; to bids received; to the Utilities 
Commission review and adoption;  highlighted research on potential return on investment; 
with the University of North Carolina School of Government; and stated the item would be 
presented for consideration at the regular Council meeting.  Mayor Pro-Tem Hunt requested 
the title to include the word “amendment”.  Discussion took place regarding water/sewer 
connections; concerns and potential requirements for voluntary annexations; exploration of 
system development fees; and litigation of impact fees. 

vi. Resolution 2025-043 – Approve a Construction, Engineering, and Inspection (CEI) contract 
with Volkert Engineering for the Lewisville/Vienna/Robinhood Roundabout – Town Manager 
Tolbert outlined selected bid; low bid costs; funding allocations; and spoke to CEI 
requirements.    

vii. Ordinance 2025-027 – Declare the Road Closure – 2025 Christmas Parade - Town Manager 
Tolbert shared preparations for the 2025 Christmas Parade; and referenced road closures. 

i. Ordinance 2025-028 – Amend Capital Project Ordinance for the Community Center Capital 
Projects Fund - Finance Director Pam Orrell provided a staff report handout; spoke to funding 
revenues and expenses for Ordinance 2025-028 and 2025-029; and recommendations to 
close out capital project funds.  Discussion continued regarding town growth; sound 
investments; tax rates; and previous litigations. (The staff report referenced is herein incorporated by 

reference into the minutes.)   
viii. Ordinance 2025-029 – Amend Capital Project Ordinance for Jack Warren Park Improvements 
ix. Resolution 2025-044 – Approve the Special Project Review Committee Facility Use Exemption 

Process and Revisions – Town Manager Tolbert referenced the Special Project Review 



October 6, 2025 

Committee meeting on September 18th to review the processes and policy outline; the need 
for consistency; reiterated the bi-annual application process; and outlined the proposed 
recommendation of the following: 

• Remove the one-time use exemption process

• Update the policy for a once a year application process for grant funding requests

• Update the policy for a once a year application process for reoccurring facility use

exemption request

• Update the policy for a four-week application process for grant funding with open

application period in April, Committee review in May, recommendations to Council in

June, disbursement of funding approvals in July

• Update the policy for a four-week application process for reoccurring facility use

exemption request in August, Committee review in September, recommendations to

Council in October, and Code updates in November

Discussion took place regarding the need for budget allocations; a clear and concise 
purpose; staffing demands; incomplete applications; and support for the recommended 
changes.  

x. For the Good of the Order - None

xi. Adjournment – Councilmember Huffman moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:16 PM.  The motion
was seconded by Councilmember Long and approved unanimously.

_______________________________ 
Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Angela Lord, Town Clerk 



October 9, 2025 

Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
October 9, 2025 – 6:00 PM 

Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers 
6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
a. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro-

Tem Melissa Hunt, and Councilmembers Ivan Huffman, Tom Lawson, Monte Long, Ken Sadler and
Jane Welch.  Also attending were Town Clerk Angie Lord, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public
Works Director Jon Hanna, Communications Specialist Veronica Leasure and Attorney Al Andrews.

b. Invocation – Mayor Pro-Tem Hunt
c. Pledge of Allegiance – Councilmember Huffman

i. Following the pledge, Mayor Horn spoke to the passing of Mary Alice Warren; and
requested a moment of silence.

d. Adoption of Agenda – Mayor Horn requested item 5.e. (Resolution 2025-042 – Interlocal
Agreement Amendment with Winston Salem/Forsyth County Utilities for the Lewisville Lift
Station) to be postponed to the November meeting of Council.  Councilmember Welch moved to
approve the agenda as amended. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Long and
approved unanimously.

2. Consent Agenda
a. Resolution 2025-031– Financial statements for Two Months Ended August 31, 2025
b. Approval of Agenda Briefing minutes –September 4, 2025
c. Approval of Regular Meeting minutes – September 11, 2025
Councilmember Huffman moved to approve the consent agenda. The motion was seconded by
Councilmember Long and approved unanimously.

3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
a. Presentations

i. Sheriff’s Office = Sergeant PJ Stringer shared call stats; and spoke to school and construction
traffic.  Discussion took place regarding traffic violations; and appreciation for support of the
Town.

Attachment #3



October 9, 2025 

b. Introductions
i. Al Andrews, Town Attorney, Brough Law Firm, PLLC.  Mayor Horn introduced the new Town

Attorney, Al Andrews of Brough Law Firm, PLLC; shared highlighted qualifications from
Attorney Andrews’ resume; and welcomed him to the Town of Lewisville.

4. Public Forum – There were no speakers.

5. New Business
a. Motion to Approve the 2026 Meeting Schedule – Town Clerk Angie Lord presented the proposed

2026 Town of Lewisville Meeting Schedule; stated the schedule included Board and Committee
meetings, the Community Day event, Town Council Briefings and regular meetings, the Council
Retreat and Budget Workshops, and the North Carolina League of Municipalities annual
CityVision.  Councilmember Lawson moved to adopt the 2026 Meeting Schedule.  The motion
was seconded by Councilmember Sadler and motion passed unanimously.  (2026 Meeting Schedule

is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

b. Resolution 2025-034 – Call a Public Hearing to Receive Public Comments for the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO) L-170 Text Amendments – Mayor Horn outlined the
amendments to cover religious institutions, tree preservation and open space standards.  Mayor
Pro-Tem Hunt moved to approve resolution 2025-034.  The motion was seconded by
Councilmember Lawson and motion passed unanimously.  (Resolution 2025-034 is herein incorporated

by reference into the minutes.)

c. Resolution 2025-040 – Call a Public Hearing to Receive Public Comments to Rezone L-114 at
6732 Shallowford Road (PIN 5875-85-4964) for Heritage Crossing – Mayor Horn shared the
request to call a public hearing for a rezoning by the Lewisville UPS store owners for a building
to include three office/commercial units including the UPS store; and stated the public hearing
would be on November 13, 2025. Councilmember Huffman made a motion to adopt Resolution
2025-040.  The motion as seconded by Councilmember Sadler and motion passed unanimously.
(Resolution 2025-040 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

d. Resolution 2025-041 – Award Street Paving Contract with American Spray Tech in the amount of
$81, 563 - Public Works Director Jon Hanna explained the crack sealing project; spoke to the
vendor honoring a previous bid.  Discussion ensued regarding the number of streets to be
addressed; and mileage to be covered.   Councilmember Long moved to approve Resolution
2025-041.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Welch and passed unanimously.
(Resolution 2025-041 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

e. Resolution 2025-042 – Interlocal Agreement Amendment with Winston Salem/Forsyth County
Utilities for the Lewisville Lift Station – This item was postponed to the November 13, 2025
meeting of Council. (Resolution 2025-042 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

f. Resolution 2025-043 – Approve a Construction, Engineering, and Inspection, (CEI) Contract with
Volkert Engineering for the Lewisville, Vienna, Robinhood Roundabout – Finance Director Pam
Orrell provided an overview of the contract with Volkert Engineering in an amount not to
exceed $358,217.24.  Councilmember Lawson moved to approve Resolution 2025-043.  The
motion was seconded by Councilmember Welch and passed unanimously.  (Resolution 2025-043 is

herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

g. Ordinance 2025-027 – Declare Road Closures for the 2025 Christmas Parade – Town Clerk Lord
explained the routine ordinance for street closures for the annual Christmas Parade to take
place on December 14, 2025.  Councilmember Long moved to approve Ordinance 2025-027.
The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Hunt and passed unanimously.  (Ordinance 2025-027

is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

h. Ordinance 2025-028 – Amend Capital Project Ordinance for the Community Center Capital
Projects Fund – Finance Director Orrell explained the remaining balance in the project fund;
requested consideration to close the fund; and to move funding to the Great Wagon Road
project for water and sewer lines.  Councilmember Huffman moved to adopt Ordinance 2025-



October 9, 2025 

028. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Lawson and passed unanimously.  (Ordinance

2025-028 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.) 
i. Ordinance 2025-029 – Amend Capital Project Ordinance for Jack Warren Park Improvements –

Finance Director Orrell explained the remaining balance in the project fund; requested
consideration to close the fund; and to move funding to the Great Wagon Road project.
Councilmember Long moved to adopt Ordinance 2025-029.  The motion was seconded by
Councilmember Welch and passed unanimously.  (Ordinance 2025-029 is herein incorporated by

reference into the minutes.)

j. Resolution 2025-045 – Facility Use Exemption – West Forsyth Christian Preschool – Town Clerk
Lord outlined the request for the Mary Alice Warren Community Center on April 17, 2026; and
stated the request had been reviewed and recommended by the Special Projects Review
Committee.  Councilmember Welch moved to adopt Resolution 2025-045.  Councilmember
Huffman seconded the motion and motion passed unanimously.  (Resolution 2025-045 is herein

incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

k. Resolution 2025-044 – Approve the Special Projects Review Committee Facility Use Exemption
Process and Revisions – Town Clerk Lord explained the Special Projects Review Committee met
on September 18, 2025 to discuss revisions to the process; and recommended changes to
institute an annual process for grant funding in the spring and facility use exemption requests in
the fall.  Discussion took place regarding the need for a clear process; defining of the purpose;
staffing demands; and a smoother process for the committee.  Mayor Pro-Tem Hunt moved to
adopt Resolution 2025-044.  Motion was seconded by Councilmember Huffman and approved
unanimously.  (Resolution 2025-044 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

6. Administrative Reports
a. Upcoming events and closings

i. Hocus Pocus 2 Starlight Movie Night - @Shallowford Square – October 10
ii. Bulky Pick-Up Begins – October 13

iii. Lewisville Election Candidate Forum - @ Mary Alice Warren Community Center – October 16
@ 7 PM (Hosted by the Lewisville Civic Club)

iv. Clean Sweep @ Town Annex – October 18 @ 9am – 12pm
v. Special Recycling Event @ David McKee Street – October 18 @ 10am – 2pm

vi. Shalloween - @ Shallowford Square – October 25 @ 1 PM – 2:30 PM
vii. Elected Orientation – @ Town Hall – December 4 – Photos @ 4 PM – Dinner @ 5:30 PM –

Orientation @ 6 PM (No Council Briefing)
Public Works Director Hanna outlined the upcoming events. 
b. Clerk Report

i. Board and Committee Vacancies Update – Town Clerk Lord provided an overview of vacancies
on the Lewisville Beautification Committee; spoke to receipt of applications; and to upcoming
interviews.  Town Clerk Lord stated there were currently openings on the Zoning Board of
Adjustment and the Willow Run Municipal Service District; and explained applications would be
accepted for all vacancies until filled.  Mayor Horn voiced appreciation for the Board and
Committees; recognized Public Arts Committee Chair John Armbruster; and highlighted the art
unveiling event on Monday.

c. Public Works Report
i. Fred Moser Property Update - Public Works Director Hanna explained staff were researching

information on abandonment of wells on the property; and stated staff anticipated an agenda
item before Council at the November meeting.

d. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on October 6, 2025
i. Motion for Moratorium on Facility Use and Exemption Requests – Town Clerk Lord stated the

moratorium would provide time for revisions to be made to the Facility Use and Exemption



October 9, 2025 

Request Policy and application.  Councilmember Welch explained the moratorium would end on 
December 3, 2025. 

7. For the Good of the Order
a. Public comments – there were no speakers.
b. Council comments

i. Councilmember Welch voiced appreciation for the support in wearing pink in honor of
Breast Cancer awareness.  Mayor Horn shared goals had been exceeded at the recent
blood drive.

8. Adjournment – Councilmember Long moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:42 PM. The motion was
seconded by Councilmember Huffman and motion passed unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Angela Lord, Town Clerk 



Attachment #4



I’m One of the Reasons 

Lewisville is a Great Place to Live 
 

Presented to  

Cliff Lewis 
for outstanding contributions to the Town of Lewisville and residents 

 

Lewisville Town Council 
 

 
Mayor Mike Horn 

November 13, 2025  

 



Attachment #5













ORDINANCE 2025-031 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
UDO L-170 - AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) PERTAINING TO 

OPEN SPACE STANDARDS, TREE PRESERVATION STANDARDS & RELIGIOUS INSTITUTIONS STANDARDS 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board held a legislative hearing on October 8, 2025 on the draft to 
amend the UDO sections related to open space standards in residential subdivisions, tree preservation 
standards, and the definitions, permitted uses table and use standards related to religious institutions;  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board recommended approval to the Lewisville Town Council; 

WHEREAS, notice of the Town Council legislative hearing was duly advertised in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the area October 26, 2025 and November 2, 2025;  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council held a legislative hearing on November 13, 2025; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the sections of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) described by UDO L-170, related to open space standards in residential 
subdivisions, tree preservation standards, and the definitions, permitted uses table and use standards 
related to religious institutions are amended as noted in the attached document.      

Adopted this the 13th day of November 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

__________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Angie Lord, Town Clerk 

Attachment #6



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: UDO L-170 TEXT AMENDMENTS 

SUBJECT: SEVERAL PROPOSED UDO TEXT AMENDMENTS ADDRESSING 
OPEN SPACE, TREE PRESERVATION AND STANDARDS FOR 
CERTAIN ISTITUTIONS 

PREPARED BY: LYNN COCHRAN, PLANNING DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: NOVEMBER 5, 2025 

UDO L-170 revisits items and information that had been discussed during the adoption process for the 
new UDO, which the Council felt like could be improved. 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed UDO text amendments. The Planning Board voted 
unanimously (7-0) to recommend approval  during its regularly scheduled meeting October 10, 2025.

      UDO L-170 Agenda Item Packet 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION: 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

ATTACHMENT(S): 



UDO L-170(a) REDIFINING THE SCALE OF RELIGIOUS 
INSTITUTIONS IN RELATION TO RESIDENTIAL AREAS 

Currently the UDO describes and provides zoning regulations for religious institutions at 
two scales, neighborhood and community. Neighborhood scale is the smaller, with a 
seating capacity of 600 seats or less. Community Scale is the larger, with a seating 
capacity of more than 600 persons. Each type of religious institution is allowed in RS 
zoning districts, in addition to others. 

TEXT CHANGES 
This text amendment will include changes to the definitions of religious institutions, 
revising the seating capacity of the main sanctuary of each to a scale that is more 
suitable to the residential areas of the Town of Lewisville 

DEFINITIONS 
Religious Institution, Community Scale. A religious institution in which the seating 
capacity in the sanctuary or main activity area is greater than six hundred (600) three 
hundred (300) persons. 
Religious Institution, Neighborhood Scale. A religious institution in which the seating 
capacity in the sanctuary or main activity area is six hundred (600) three hundred (300) 
persons or less. 

ZONING DISTRICTS/PERMITTED USES TABLE 
There will be no changes to the use standards for either neighborhood scale or 
community scale religious institutions. The permitted uses table will be amended to 
reflect the changes for community scale religious institutions noted below: 

• Community scale religious institutions will no longer be permissible in RS and
RM zoning districts.

• New community scale religious institutions will require technical review and
approval from the Planning Board as opposed to a special use permit.

Lewisville Methodist – 250 
Temple Baptist – 300 
Unity Moravian - 300 



UDO L-170(B) REFINING TREE PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS 

CURRENT 3-3.7. TREE PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS 
A. Intent.

1. This Section 3-3.7 Tree Preservation Requirements intents to limit excessive
pruning or clear-cutting of existing trees and other natural landscape features.

2. This Section 3-3.7 Tree Preservation Requirements shall provide a uniform
standard for the protection and replacement of trees on all property when a zoning
or building permit is required for new development.

3. Existing trees may be counted toward landscaping and buffer requirements and
toward tree preservation standards as stated herein.

4. As communities develop and grow, the need for renovation and construction of
buildings, roads, parking lots and other infrastructure poses significant
environmental impacts.

5. Tree preservation and tree protection regulations are necessary to protect
desirable trees and plants and are a vital part of sustainable community growth.

B. Preservation Standards.
1. It is the intent of this Section 3-3.7 Tree Preservation Requirements to preserve

deciduous and evergreen trees to the greatest extent possible.
2. Trees at least twenty-five (25) inches in circumference within required buffer and

landscaping areas shall be tagged prior to any site clearance and be preserved.
At least fifteen percent (15%) of all existing tress shall be preserved.

3. In any case where a deciduous or evergreen tree over twenty-five (25) inches in
circumference is removed from the buffer, it shall be replaced with at least four (4)
or more trees of similar species and size, the location which shall be determined
by the Director.

4. Trees seventy-five (75) inches in circumference must be preserved and shall not
be removed.

C. Preservation Plan. A tree preservation plan shall be required as part of any
landscaping plan submitted to the Department of Planning and meet the following
standards:
1. The plan must show there will be no disturbance within a preserved tree’s critical

root zone.
2. A preserved tree’s critical root zone shall be protected from encroachment and

damage.
3. A physical barrier restricting access to a tree’s critical root zone shall be installed

to prevent encroachment from materials, people, and equipment.
4. Barriers shall be accompanied by temporary signs labeling the critical root zone.
5. The critical root zone area shall remain free of all building materials and debris.



CHANGES 
Improving the current tree preservation standards involves a few edits to the 
LANDSCAPING STANDARDS, particularly regarding standardization of measurement. 

B.3-3.2. APPLICATION PROCEDURES AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS (p. 362)
Standardize tree size measurement throughout the UDO to the “Diameter at Breast
Height,” defined as 4.5 feet, and which is the industry standard.

3. Existing Trees to be Preserved. The number, location, species, height, and
diameter at six (6) inches above ground level number and location of existing trees
measuring six (6) inches in diameter at breast height (DBH), defined as 4.5 feet above
grade of existing trees to be preserved for credit as per Section B.3-3.2(H) Use of
Existing Trees for Credit;

5. Tree Protection Plan. The Tree Protection Plan shall show the location of existing
trees on the property, including those that are to be removed, the limits of disturbance,
the Critical Root Zone (CRZ), and tree protection fence. The CRZ shall remain
undisturbed in order for the tree to count towards the mitigation requirement. The
applicant shall provide a tree survey showing the location of all trees measuring eight
inches DBH or more, including the CRZ; wooded areas to be preserved; and the overall
limits of disturbance.

Table B.3.11 Use of Existing Trees for Credit (p. 365) 
Reword to standardized measurement: Diameter of Existing Trees at Breast Height (4.5 
feet above grade). 

Diameter of Existing Tree Six (6) 
Inches Above Ground Level 

Number of 
Trees 

Credited 
2—6 inches 1 

7—12 inches 2 
13—18 inches 3 
19—24 inches 4 

25 inches or greater 5 



PROPOSED 3-3.7. TREE PRESERVATION STANDARDS 
A. Intent.

1. It is the intent of this Section 3-3.7 Tree Preservation Requirements to preserve

deciduous and evergreen trees to the greatest extent possible.

2. As communities develop and grow, the need for renovation and construction of

buildings, roads, parking lots and other infrastructure poses significant

environmental impacts.

3. Tree preservation and tree protection regulations are necessary to protect

desirable trees and plants and are a vital part of sustainable community growth.

4. Recognize the importance of the existing tree canopy and natural features such

as native tree groves and stands of hardwood trees;

5. Recognize the importance of existing trees to the visual and natural

environments in the Town;

6. Protect and retain significant tree masses and specimen trees during and after

development;

7. To mitigate the effects of climate change and direct impacts on public health by

preserving and renewing neighborhood tree canopies;

8. Provide a uniform standard for the protection and replacement of trees on all

property when a permit is required for new development.

B. Pre-Application Meeting. (Optional)
1. Prior to plan development and submittal, the applicant is encouraged to meet with

the Planning Director and provide a graphic depiction on an aerial map illustrating

the existing tree canopy and potential areas for preservation of existing healthy

trees with good form.

C. Coordination with Other Plans.
1. When permanent stormwater control measures (SCM) incorporate existing trees

as amenities or for other purposes according to the standards of this section, these

trees may be counted toward credit of the minimum 15% preservation requirement.

2. Existing trees may be counted toward landscaping and buffer requirements in

addition to the tree preservation standards described herein.



D. Preservation Standards.
1. This Section intends to limit excessive pruning or clear-cutting of existing trees

and other natural landscape features.

2. Trees shall be measured by diameter at breast height (DBH), equal to 4.5 feet

above grade.

3. Tree measurements shall include the critical root zone. The critical root zone

(CRZ) is the circular region measured outward from a tree, representing the

essential area of the roots that must be maintained in order for the tree to

survive. The Critical Root Zone is one (1) foot of radial distance from the tree's

trunk for every one (1) inch of tree caliper, measured at breast height (DBH) as

measured four and a half (4.5) feet above grade.

4. Trees measuring eight (8) inches in diameter or more (DBH) within required

buffer and landscaping areas shall be tagged prior to any site clearance and be

preserved. At least fifteen percent (15%) of all existing tress shall be preserved.

5. In any case where a deciduous or evergreen measuring eight inches at DBH is

removed from a buffer, it shall be replaced with at least four (4) or more trees of

similar species and size, the location which shall be determined by the Director.

6. Trees measuring twenty-four (24) inches at DBH or greater must be preserved

and shall not be removed, if at all possible. In cases where these trees might

pose a significant hardship, they must be replaced with the equivalent number

of



tree caliper inches of the tree removed. The minimum replacement tree size shall 

be a 3-inch caliper. 

E. Preservation Plan. A tree preservation plan shall be required as part of any

landscaping plan submitted to the Department of Planning and meet the following

standards:

1. The applicant shall provide a tree survey showing the location of all trees

measuring eight (8) inches at DBH or more, including the CRZ; wooded areas to

be preserved; and the overall limits of disturbance.

2. The plan must show there will be no disturbance within a preserved tree’s critical

root zone.

3. A preserved tree’s critical root zone shall be protected from encroachment and

damage.

4. A physical barrier restricting access to a tree’s critical root zone shall be installed

to prevent encroachment from materials, people, and equipment.

5. Barriers shall be accompanied by temporary signs labeling the critical root zone.

6. The critical root zone area shall remain free of all building materials and debris.

F. Alternative Compliance. An applicant may propose a tree preservation plan that

varies from the strict application of the provisions of this Section in order to

accommodate unique characteristics of the site or to utilize innovative design.

Applications for alternative compliance shall include a site plan following the

requirements specified in Section A.4-3.10 Site Plan and shall be approved

administratively by the Planning Director and/or Planning Board (if applicable) upon a

finding that the proposed preservation plan meets or exceeds the requirements of this

Section.



UDO L-170(c) 
D.6-B.4 OPEN SPACE STANDARDS ( Chapter D)
A. Intent. The intent of these standards is to allow uses of unencumbered land that

provide enjoyment, recreation and public health benefits while fostering a sense of

community in Lewisville’s residential areas. Land dedicated for other purposes or

that is otherwise unusable may not be used to fulfill the requirements of this chapter.

Open space as defined by this Section is also separate from those areas that are

environmentally sensitive and that must be protected in their natural state,

particularly as described in Chapter C of this Ordinance (e.g., flood hazard areas,

natural wetlands, riparian buffers, stormwater control measures, etc.).

B. Generally. Herein, open space is defined as all public or common areas not occupied

by buildings, parking areas, stormwater control measures, streets, or required

landscape bufferyards.

1. Open space shall be planned, improved and made accessible to persons living

nearby. At a minimum, improved spaces shall be cleared of underbrush and

debris.

2. Playground equipment, statuary, and fountains should be located toward the

interior of squares and parks away from the public right-of-way to provide for

adequate safety of the user.

3. Open space shall protect natural areas and provide focal points for

neighborhoods and town. A central square or green, for example, may

comprise a majority of the area required for dedication.

4. Dedicated open space shall be held in common ownership, separately deeded

to a homeowner's association, land trust or conservancy, or similar such

organization.

C. Applicability. All Major Subdivisions described in Chapter D of this Ordinance are

subject to the requirements of this Section. These standards do not apply to Large

Lot Subdivisions as defined in herein, Planned Residential Developments, Multi-

Family Developments or in the Mixed-Use Conditional Zoning District (MU-C). These

standards do not apply in the following overlays: DTO, NAC, VBO, HO or TO. If a

Major Subdivision is located within one-quarter (1/4) of a mile from public open

space (e.g., Jack Warren Park, Shallowford Square) these standards do not apply.



The amount of useable open space required for dedication shall be determined 

using the open space dedication matrix described herein. 
1. The matrix is intended to designate required open space in the most effective

fashion possible for the residents of Lewisville’s neighborhoods, taking into

account residential density; the characteristics and attributes of Lewisville as a

Town; and the descriptions, intents and goals the Lewisville Tomorrow

Comprehensive Plan.

2. Additionally, the matrix encourages the preservation of land. As density

increases, the matrix requires increasing amounts of open space dedication.

For example, a 50-acre subdivision with 100 lots/homes contains two dwelling

units per acre (DUA), resulting in 2.8 acres of required open space, or about

5.5 percent. In contrast, this same tract of land subdivided into 200 lots (DUA

of 4) would require 6.1 acres, about 12.2 percent dedicated open space.

Table D.6.1 Open Space Matrix 
OPEN SPACE DEDICATION REQUIREMENT 

Density Factor (Dwelling Units per Acre) 
0 to 2 +2 to 3 +3 to 4 +4

Standard Multiplier for 
Number of Dwellings 

× 1225 1275 1325 1350 

USING THE MATRIX FORMULA: 

A developer wants to subdivide a 25-acre tract of land into 50 lots/homes. How much 

open space is required for dedication? First, calculate the density to identify the 

correct column for the factor (50/25 = 2.0 DUA). Multiply the number of dwellings by 

the density factor in the specified column. In this case, the number of homes (50) x the 

density factor (1225) = 61,250 square feet, or approximately 1.4 acres. 

D. Evaluation Criteria
1. Location. In general, land for dedicated for open space shall be centrally located

so as to serve the needs of the residents of the subdivision and the residents of

nearby areas. However, smaller types of open space may be located throughout

any given development.



2. Accessibility. All recreation areas shall be conveniently accessible to all residents

of the subdivision. At least ½ of the acreage of all recreational space provided shall

be compliant with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

3. Usability. Land for recreation areas shall be sited such that they can be safely and

easily reached by their anticipated users.

E. Open Space Types. Open space may take many different forms, dependent upon

both the nature of the development and the land on which it is established. The open

space types described herein are meant as examples. Developers are encouraged

to design innovative and engaging spaces.

1. Pocket Park. Pocket parks are defined as a small open space. Pocket

parks are primarily intended to provide small

active or passive recreation

opportunities and act as a gathering

space for residents or customers.

Features may include small shade

structures, gazebos, seating areas,

multi-purpose lawn space,

playgrounds, community gardens,

dog parks, trails, or natural

elements such as a stream or pond.

2. Amenity Center. Amenity centers are defined as small or medium mixed

open spaces and include a combination of enclosed and open areas.

Amenity centers are meant to foster both active and passive recreation, supporting

public health and wellness. Amenity centers may

include features such as pools,

splash pads, clubhouse, small scale

recreational facilities such as

pickleball, soccer, or shuffleboard,

lawn games, and pavilions. Pavilions



associated with an amenity center are open air structures that typically allow for 

shade, outdoor concerts, exhibits, and other activities commonly associated
Designs of amenity centers and pavilions should be similar in architecture and 

material as the residential development. 

3.  Green/Courtyard. Greens are defined as small or medium open

spaces. Greens provides more informal, natural spaces

supporting active or passive

recreation opportunities. Greens are

typically bounded by rights-of-ways

and the fronts of buildings. Greens

may provide features such as multi- 

purpose lawn space, lawn games,

playgrounds or play spaces, and

limited small-scale recreational

facilities such as pickleball or

soccer.



4. Plaza. Plazas are defined as small or medium open spaces. Plazas serves 

as a gathering place for civic, social, and

commercial purposes. A plaza may

contain a greater amount of

impervious coverage than any other

open space type. Plazas are

typically located in the front or sides

of a building or group of buildings

and may not be located in the rear of

the building or property. Pedestrian

features such as shade structures, benches, tables, fountains, and public art 

are required.

5. Square. Squares are defined as small or medium open spaces. Squares 

serve as a more formal open space type for

gathering for civic, social, and

commercial purposes. Squares are

typically rectilinear in shape and are

bordered on all sides by a vehicular

right-of-way (public and private),

which, together with building

frontages, creates a definition and

boundary. Features may include

seating areas, pedestrian facilities,

play areas, shade structures, gazebos, seating areas, playgrounds,

public art, statues, and monuments.



6. Linear Park. Linear parks are defined as medium or large open spaces. Linear

parks may be formalized based on

function (i.e., provide

multimodal or connectivity

opportunities). Linear parks

typically take advantage of

scenic environmental attributes

and follow a natural feature

including but not limited to a

stream, wetland system, or

man-made feature. Components may include natural environmental features

such as streams, benches, picnic tables, lawn games, and shade structures.

7. Neighborhood Park. Neighborhood parks are defined as medium or large open

spaces. Neighborhood parks are

protected natural spaces that

provide opportunities for active

and passive recreation.

Neighborhood parks shall

include at least one of the

following:

ball fields, tennis courts,

basketball courts, fitness

areas, paths, trails, meadows,water bodies, open shelters, performance areas

and other recreational amenities. Neighborhood parks typically serve as a

medium or large open space area for residential subdivisions, planned

developments, and mixed-use centers.



F. Alternative Compliance. An applicant may propose a tree preservation plan that

varies from the strict application of the provisions of this Section in order to

accommodate unique characteristics of the site or to utilize innovative design.

Applications for alternative compliance shall include a site plan following the

requirements specified in Section A.4-3.10 Site Plan and shall be approved

administratively by the Planning Director and/or Planning Board (if applicable) upon a

finding that the proposed preservation plan meets or exceeds the requirements of this

Section.



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE PLANNING 
CONSISTENCY DETERMINATIONS 

The Board has reviewed UDO L-170, text amendments to the Lewisville Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO). As required by NCGS § 160D, the Board makes the 
following findings: 

1. Consistency. This application is found to be consistent with the descriptions,
intents and goals of the Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan because:

a. The Town seeks to provide reasonable zoning and development
standards to accommodate religious institutions of various sizes;

b. The Town has determined that reasonable tree preservation standards are
in the best interests of its residents, promoting public health, safety and
general welfare;

c. The Town has determined that reasonable open space preservation
standards are in the best interests of its residents, promoting public health,
safety and general welfare



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE PLANNING 
DRAFT MOTION TO APPROVE OR DENY 

APPROVE 

“I move to APPROVE this request based upon the Consistency Determinations 
Statements that are included in the Board agenda packet, as may be amended.” 

DENY 

“I move to DENY this request based upon the Consistency Determinations Statements 
that are included in the Board agenda packet, as may be amended.” 



ORDINANCE 2025-032 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

Conditional District Rezoning from RS-20 (Residential Single family, minimum lot size 20,000 sq. ft.) to 
LD1-C (Lewisville Downtown 1 Conditional District) 

(Zoning Docket L-114) 6732 Shallowford Road, Tax Parcel ID 5875-85-4964.

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville published notification of this conditional zoning request on October 26, 
2025 and November 2, 2025;  

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville has received an affidavit of publication for the aforementioned dates; 

WHEREAS, as sign indicating notice of a public hearing was posted on the subject property in a prominent 
location on September 24, 2025; and October 24, 2025; 

WHEREAS, letters of legislative hearing notice were mailed by U.S. Postal Service First Class to the 
addresses of property owners within 500 feet of the subject property, obtained from Forsyth County tax 
records, on September 24, 2025 and October 24, 2025;  

WHEREAS, these procedures were performed and certified by Town staff in accordance with the 
requirements of NCGS 160D-601 and the Lewisville Unified Development Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board held a public hearing during its regularly scheduled 
meeting held October 8, 2025;  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board favorably recommended approval of the request to the 
Town Council;  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council accepts the staff report; and 

WHEREAS, the uses requested are allowed in the LD1-C (Lewisville Downtown 1 Conditional) zoning 
district; 

WHEREAS, certain commercial, professional services and office uses are encouraged in this area by the 
Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the Lewisville Town Council finds the proposed conditional 
district rezoning consistent with the intents, goals and recommendations of the Lewisville Tomorrow 
Comprehensive Plan. Further, the Council finds that the action to be taken is reasonable and in the public 
interest, considering all relevant factors, and therefore approves the zoning map amendment and site 
plan.  

Attachment #7



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: The Town of Lewisville Official Zoning Map of the Town of Lewisville, North Carolina is 
hereby amended. 

Section 2: The property is (+/-) 2.33 acres, denoted by tax parcel ID 5875-85-4964, located at 6732 
Shallowford Road as shown on the attached site plan. 

Section 3: This ordinance shall be effective from and after its adoption. 

Adopted this the 13th day of November 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

__________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Angela Lord, Town Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: L-114 HERITAGE CROSSING PROBOSED REZONING

SUBJECT: REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND MEASURING ( + / - )  2 . 3 3  A C R E S  
F R O M  S I N G L E  F A M I L Y  R E S I D E N T I A L  ( R S - 2 0 )  T O  T H E  
L E W I S V I L L E  D O W N T O W N  l  C O N D I T I O N A L  Z O N I N G  
D  I S T R  I  C T  (L D 1 - C ) 

PREPARED BY: LYNN COCHRAN, PLANNING DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: NOVEMBER 5, 2025 

L114, Heritage Crossing: a request to rezone property located at 6732 Shallowford Rd from RS-20 to the 
LD1-C downtown core zoning district. 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request. The Planning Board voted unanimously (7-0) to 
recommend approval of the rezoning request during its regularly scheduled meeting October 10, 2025; with a 
recommendation that if Council feels it may be necessary, take into consideration signage and/or traffic 
calming measures near the entrance to the subject property from Heritage Rd. 

Town Council Agenda Packet for L-114 Heritage Crossing Rezoning 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION: 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

ATTACHMENT(S): 



Members of the Planning Board 
Tom Lawson, Chair | Mike Mulligan, Vice Chair 
Philip May, Kate Sonney, Rob Herald, Lynn Fulton, Marc Maready 

AGENDA ITEM 
LEWISVILLE PLANNING BOARD 
L-114: A request for rezoning from Residential Single-Family 

(RS-20) to the Lewisville Downtown 1 Conditional Zoning 
District (LD1-C)  

Applicant: Jung Hoke, Ross Houston 
Tax PIN(s): 5875-85-4964 
Location: 6732 Shallowford Rd, Lewisville 

Size and Location of the Parcel(s): This property measures (+/-) 2.33 acres according to 
the Forsyth County Tax Map and is located adjacent to the traffic circle along the 
corner of Heritage Dr and Shallowford Rd.  

Property Site: The property is currently vacant of any structures. 

Immediate & Nearby Area: This property is located in Lewisville’s dedicated Downtown 
Core Area (DCA), which features a mix of small and medium size commercial uses, 
institutional uses and to a lesser degree, single-family residential uses. Adjacent 
properties are currently zoned Residential Single-Family (RS-20). Nearby zoning and uses 
feature limited business, highway business and Lewisville Downtown 1 & 2.  

Environmental Features: This property is located within the Yadkin River WS IV 
Watershed. As such, development of this property will be considered high-density, most 
likely subject to post-construction stormwater control measures (SCMs). 

Utilities: This property is currently served by public water sewer facilities. 

Access: This property is served by Shallowford Road, designated as a major 
thoroughfare, according to the Winston-Salem Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) map and by Heritage Drive, 
which is considered a local road, a portion of which is privately maintained.  

Previous Zoning History: This property was zoned RS-20 at the time the town 
incorporated.   

Comprehensive Plan: The Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan designates this 
property as part of the Lewisville Downtown Place Type. “This area is intended to 
combine small town urban characteristics by blending civic uses, retail and 
entertainment attractions, employment opportunities, open space and mixed-use 
residential areas in intentional ways.” (p. 75). A hallmark of the Downtown Place Type is 
pedestrian orientation and connectivity. 

Consistency & Reasonableness Considerations: 
1. Consistency. This application is found to be consistent with the Lewisville

Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan because:



Members of the Planning Board 
Tom Lawson, Chair | Mike Mulligan, Vice Chair 
Philip May, Kate Sonney, Rob Herald, Lynn Fulton, Marc Maready 

• Retail, service and institutional uses are considered part of the fabric of
Downtown Lewisville.

• Development of currently vacant lots in the DCA is strongly encouraged
by the Comprehensive Plan.

• Land Use Objective 2 prioritizes developing “Downtown Lewisville as a
center of community identity, encouraging small businesses and a mix of
housing types.” (p. 129)

2. Reasonableness. This application is found to be reasonable and in the public
interest, based on the following factors

• Measuring (+/-) 2.33 acres, the size of this property is typical of the area.
• Rezoning from RS-20 & LD1-C will allow uses that are more compatible

with the mixed nature of existing uses in this area, while maintaining the
character of adjacent and nearby properties and preserving Lewisville’s
small-town feel.

• The proposed establishment provides a valuable service to the residents
of Lewisville.

Additional Considerations: Given the location of this property and the conditional 
nature of the rezoning request, all development will be subject to the Downtown 
Overlay (DTO) standards described in the Lewisville UDO. Because of unique features 
that are specific to this property, particularly its location adjacent to a traffic circle, 
which creates a variable front property line, the applicants have requested 
consideration of alternative compliance, as demonstrated by the site plan submitted 
with the application materials.    

Staff Analysis & Recommendation: Staff finds the application to be complete and ready 
for board consideration. Staff finds the request to be consistent with the intents and 
descriptions of the Comprehensive Plan in the Downtown place type and with the 
principles of alternative compliance. Additionally, staff finds the request to be 
reasonable when considering all other relevant factors. 

Thus, staff recommends approval of zoning map amendment L-114, a request for 
rezoning from Residential Single-Family (RS-20) to the Lewisville Downtown 1 Conditional 
Zoning District. 







L-114 Heritage Crossing Alternative Compliance Application

Project Name: Heritage Crossing 
Address of Lot: 6924 Shallowford Rd. Lewisville  
Owner and Developer: Ross Houston & Jung Hoke 

Required Compliance: Lewisville’s Downtown Overlay guidelines required to place the 
building (>50%) within the 10’ setback from the public right-of- way (BTL: Build- to-Line).  
It could be easier to be compliant if the lot is shaped in a square/rectangle and typical 
buildings are also square/rectangle shape.  This lot (6924 Shallowford Rd.) is not in a 
square/rectangle shape and includes a large portion of curved edge alongside the 
Roundabout on Shallowford Rd. and Heritage Dr.  

Challenges: The Heritage Crossing building is a rectangle shape, consisting of 3 
distinctive designs/units that are connected.  When we tried to place the building on 
the BTL (facing the Shallowford Rd.), the building had to be shifted as far as to the right 
side (Shallowford side) hence, the whole building had to be compressed in the width 
and stretched in the depth toward back. It resulted in the front width of the building to 
be drastically narrowed, and the one building had to be as ~76-77’ long in depth.  An 
Ideal depth of any small pedestrian retail space should be no more than ~60’-65’ for 
the best consumer experience.  Not only we were challenged by the location and 
shape of the building but also were facing the following engineering difficulties: 

1. Because the building was pushed furthest to the right side of the lot, we had very
narrow driveway on the Shallowford entry side.  The site plan had only ~20’
driveway width on the Shallowford side entry (Engineer’s recommendation: ~
22’-25’ wide),

2. Also, on the Shallowford entry side, there were no spaces for any side-parking
where the UPS Store is planning to be located, and the UPS delivery truck had to
load/unload packages.

3. At the same time, there was a large extra unused land space on the side of
Heritage Rd. alongside the Roundabout because the building location was far
shifted to the Shallowford side.

Alternative Compliance: We (engineer, architect and Lynn) met several times and 
explored many different rotations, designs, and sizes for a suitable solution for the best 
use of the land and our objectives.  Per Lynn’s creative suggestion, the engineer 
brought the building down just about ~9’ from the BTL.  That move allowed us to shift 
the building closer to the Roundabout side on the curve, and we were able to resolve 
all those challenges and accomplish the following objectives: 

- Enabled sufficient 2-way traffic driveway with ~26’ in width on the Shallowford
Side entry.

- Enabled to create 8-9 SIDE parking spaces (Shallowford facing).



L-114 Heritage Crossing Alternative Compliance Application

- Also provided a good size Handicap parking space that was very close for the
Store on the side.

- Accommodated the future UPS Store to have one UPS delivery truck loading
space on the side.

- Allowed all 3 buildings to have the suitable dimensions (30’x40’, 50’x65’ and
30x45’).

- Allowed full usage of Heritage Rd side land with no more voided land space.
- Provided some extra space on the front of the building for potential pedestrian

experience (i.e., extra landscape and/or benches…etc.).

ALTERNATIVE COMPLIANCE (Section B.2 – Zoning Regulations), Page B.2-198 

The Planning Board may consider site plans varying from setbacks and other 
dimensional requirements of the UDO in the Downtown Overlay, where there might exist 
challenges to strict conformity with these provisions.  These include, but are not limited 
to zoning lots of unusual size and shape, the configuration of adjoining lots and 
improvements thereon, topography, parking availability, or other natural conditions 
beyond the control of the property owner or where prior acts of any public agency 
have occurred such that to require strict compliance with the standards of the UDO 
would compromise the intents and goal of the Downtown Overlay.  Site plans varying 
from the requirements may be approved upon written findings specifically describing 
how the site plan fulfills or exceeds the intent, purposes, and requirements of the 
supplemental standards and that such site plan is supported by the intents and 
descriptions of the Lewisville Comprehensive Plan.  Nothing in this Section shall require 
the Town to approve any site that does not comply with these requirements. 

Submitted by Jung Hoke & Ross Houston, September 22, 2025 



.

0 1 20.5 Miles

L-114 HERITAGE CROSSING VICINITY MAP

Map Created by Lynn Cochran



RS20

HB

LD1-SLD2-S

LB-S

LD1-S

0 100 20050 Feet

. L-114 HERITAGE CROSSING ZONING MAP

Map Created by Lynn Cochran



0 50 10025 Feet

. L-114 HERITAGE CROSSING AERIAL MAP

Map Created by Lynn Cochran



940

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

60
" C

ONCRET
E

CONC. SIDEWALK

 C
O

N
C

. S
ID

EW
AL

K

60
"

CO
NC

R
E

TE

60" CONCRETE

LT

LT

LT

LT

LT

30 " C&G

24" C&G

LANDSCAPED
AREA

LT

LT

CB

CB

CB

DI

CB

CB

18
" R

CP

W
/F

ES

VA
R

. B
ST

30
" C

&G

30
" C

&G

30
" C

&G

30" C&G

30" C
&G

30
" C

&G

30" C&G

30" C&G

18" C&G

18
" C

&G

18
" C

&G

18
" C

&G

IN
V=

93
2.1

6'

INV=934.56'

18" RCP

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C
C

C

C

C
C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

T TC

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C
C

INV=934.72'

CURBCUT

CC

C
C

CC

CURB
CUT

C
U

R
B

C
U

T

CURB
CUT

CURB
CUT

BS
T

M
TL

SI
GN

MTL S
IG

N

(H
ISTORIC

)

STEPS

FLAG
POLE48"

BRICK

LT

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

DB 16
28

 PG 38
60

KENT C
ORPORATIO

N

LOLA JONES KIGER

EIP

DB 3074 PG 4009
PB 60 PG 15

TAX PIN: 5875-86-2453

EL
EC

TR
IC

 M
ET

ER

ON 
W

D 
PO

ST

CO
NC

RE
TE

 IS
.

CONCRETE IS.

CO
NC

RE
TE

 IS
.

CONC.

CONC.

CO
NC

RE
TE

 IS
.

C

C

C

15
" R

CP

INV=924.09'

INV=926.09'

SHALLOWFORD ROAD

SR #1001 R/W VARIES

C

C

C

C

C

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C

C

C

C

15
" R

CP

15" RCP

15
"

RCP

RUTH M. BOOSE HEIRS
DB 736, PG. 92
DB 736, PG. 95

DB 2228, PG. 4816 (NEW R/W TAKEN)
PB 58, PG. 160 (NEW R/W TAKEN)

TAX PIN: 5875-85-4964

AREA = 99,527 SQ FT, or 2.285 ACRES ±

ROBERT EDWARD MOSER
LINDA DULL MOSER
DB 2946, PG. 1959

PB 58, PG. 160
TAX PIN: 5875-85-2808

ROBERT EDWARD MOSER
LINDA DULL MOSER

DB 2974, PG. 278
TAX PIN: 5875-85-1664

ZONED: RS20

STEVEN G. FELTS
EVA JANE FELTS

DB 2863, PG. 1908
LOT B - PB 55, PG. 180
TAX PIN: 5875-85-6646

ZONED: RS20

MARIANNE E. BALL
DB 2918, PG. 3986

LOT A - PB 55, PG. 180
TAX PIN: 5875-85-4680

ZONED: RS20

J&K PROPERTIES OF
WINSTON-SALEM LLC

DB 2804, PG. 553
TAX PIN: 5875-86-5170

ZONED: RS20

ALLEN H. MOCK, JR.
DB 3253, PG. 14

TAX PIN: 5875-04-0165
ZONED: RS20

G
RA

VEL

D
RIVE

G
RAVEL DRIVE

CONC. ISLAND

HERITA
G

E D
RIVE

(PUBLIC
) R/W

CAMERON S. KIKER
JOSHUA T. KREZEL
DB 3581, PG. 1602

TAX PIN: 5875-85-3658
ZONED: RS20

HERITA
G

E D
RIVE

(PRIVA
TE)

W
ILL

IA
M

S R
O

AD

SR
 #

11
73

CB
TOP=945.14'
INV IN = 936.56'
INV OUT=936.49'

CB
TOP=944.07'
INV IN = 935.66'
INV OUT=935.64'

CB
TOP=946.32'
INV IN = 938..01'
INV OUT=937.84'

CB
TOP=945.17'
INV IN = 938.63'
INV IN=938.61'
INV OUT=938.61'

CC

15" RCP

15" RCP

MH-D
TOP=946.28'
INV IN = 937.46' (15")
INV IN=941.23' (12")
INV OUT=937.43'

12"

HDPE

12"

HDPE

CONC. SIDEWALK

CB
TOP=945.58'
INV OUT=942.42'

MH-S
RIM=945.10'
CL INV=936.35'

MH-S
RIM=943.29'
CL INV=933.65'

8" VC

SHALLO
W

FO
RD RO

AD

SR #1001

R/W
 VARIES

ISLAND

LANDSCAPE

STONES

ISLAND

12" PIPE
N: 856,175.33'
E: 1,578,477.57'

BL-3 (REBAR/CAP)
N: 856,221.61'
E: 1,578,395.98'
ELEV: 945.73'

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

OHU

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

O
H

U
O

H
U

T

T

T

D

S

T

E

W

W

W

S

D

S

S
D

S

S MH-S
RIM=945.65'
CL INV=937.95'

S29°32'23"E

380.32'

S65°31'59"W

309.00'

N
14°52'33"W

100.00'

N
14°51'35"W
164.79'

N
14°51'35"W

96.97'

32.83'

) ) ) ) )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )

)
)
)
)
)
)

)
)

)
) ) ) ) ) ) )

)
)

)
)

) ) )

920

92
5

92
5

93
0

93
0

93
0

930

930

93
5

93
5

93
5

935

94
0

94
0

940

945

945

945

945

94
5

945

SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN

947.4'

946.9'

946.7'

947.8'

947.8'

20' TYPE II BUFFERYARD

10' PLANTING YARD

30' TYPE II BUFFERYARD

30' TYPE II BUFFERYARD

)))))
)

) ) ) ) )
)

)
))))))

)
)
)

) ) ) ) ) )

)
)

26.0'

18.0'
26.0'

18.0'
26.0'

9.0'

7.0'

7.0'
10' PLANTING YARD / BTL

26.0'

18.0'

30' TYPE II BUFFERYARD

9.0'

110.0'

6'

40.0'

46.5'

65.5'

71.2'

6'

11

9

9

940

930

931

932

925

94
0

93
5

93
0 92

8

935

FFE = 947 +/-

26
.0

'

15
'R

15'R

10
'R

20'R

9.0'

N52°00'26"E

N70°11'21"E
152.10'

41
.3

7'

N2
5°

08
'54

"E

15
'R

946

946

945

94
5

945

94
5

MH-D
TOP=946.20'
INV IN=942.28'
INV OUT=942.20'

LOADING

SPACE

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

C1

REZONING AND

PRELIMINARY

SITE PLAN

67
24

 S
H

AL
LO

W
FO

R
D

 R
O

AD
LE

W
IS

VI
LL

E,
 N

O
R

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A

H
ER

IT
AG

E 
C

R
O

SS
IN

G

07
/2

3/
20

25

SM
C

25
-0

45

JM
N

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.a
llie

d-
en

gs
ur

v.
co

m
Fa

x:
  (

33
6)

 7
60

-8
88

6

47
20

 K
ES

TE
R

 M
IL

L 
R

O
AD

Ph
on

e:
  (

33
6)

 7
65

-2
37

7
W

IN
ST

O
N

-S
AL

EM
, N

O
R

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A 
27

10
3

Al
lie

d 
D

es
ig

n,
 In

c.

D
AT

E:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

O
.:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

SHEET

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

PR
ES

UB
M

IT
TA

L 
RE

VI
EW

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E
N

O
.

A
07

/2
3/

20
25

FIRM LICENSE C-1891

PRELIMINARY

CONSTRUCTION
NOT RELEASED FOR

PLANS

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
   

 L
AN

D
 S

U
R

VE
YI

N
G

RE
VI

SE
D 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

B
09

/0
2/

20
25

RE
VI

SE
D 

PE
R 

TR
C 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
C

09
/2

5/
20

25

PROPERTY INFORMATION:
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 5875-85-4964.000

ZONING:  LDI-C / DCA
ACREAGE:  2.285

PROPERTY OWNER:
RUTH M. BOOSE, HEIRS
3709 WALDENBROOK ROAD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

DEVELOPER:
JSKH, LLC
6801 PALOMINO RODGE COURT
SUMMERFIELD, NORTH CAROLINA 27358
PHONE: (336) 202-8849
EMAIL: Jhoke007@gmail.com
CONTACT: JUNG HOKE

ENGINEER:
ALLIED DESIGN, INC.
4720 KESTER MILL ROAD
WINSTON-SALEM, N.C. 27103
PHONE:  (336) 765-2377
EMAIL:  SCAUSEY@ALLIED-ENGSURV.COM
CONTACT: STEVE CAUSEY, PE

TOTAL ACREAGE:

SITE SIZE AND COVERAGES

%

%

%

%

5.94

18.91

75.15

5,907

100

SF

FT

BUILDING TO LAND

PAVEMENT TO LAND

OPEN SPACE

TOTAL

BUILDING HEIGHT:

SITE COVERAGES:

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:
25

2.285 ACRE(S)

INFRASTRUCTURE

STREETS:

SEWER:

WATER:

X

N/A FTLINEAR FEET OF PUBLIC STREETS:

PUBLIC PRIVATE

X

X

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

TYPE OF REVIEW:

X

X TOWN OF LEWISVILLE

JURISDICTION:

PURPOSE STATEMENT:  THE PURPOSE OF THIS REQUEST

IS FOR: REZONING OF SUBJECT PROPERTY FROM RS20 TO

LD1-C / DCA AND FOR APPROVAL OF PRELIMINARY

SITE PLAN.

ZONING

EXISTING ZONING:

5875-85-4964.000

PROPERTY INFORMATION

PIN #'S:

RS20

PROPOSED ZONING:

PROPOSED USES: SERVICES, PERSONAL; ARTS AND 

CRAFTS STUDIO; GENERAL MERCHANDISE STORE; SHOPPING

CENTER; OFFICES, MISCELLANEOUS; PROFESSIONAL OFFICES;

RETAIL STORE, SPECIALTY OR MISCELLANEOUS; DANCE

SERVICES, PERSONALPROPOSED USE(S):

OFF-STREET PARKING

REQUIRED PARKING: 1 SPACE/ 400 SF GFA

PARKING REQUIRED: 15

20' & 30' TYPE IIWIDTH PROVIDED:

TYPE REQUIRED: TYPE II (AGAINST RESIDENTIAL)

RS20ADJOINING ZONING:

BUFFERYARDS

N/A

REAR:
SIDE:
STREET:

FRONT:

BUILDING SETBACKS

N/A
N/A
N/A

GENERAL NOTES

1. EXISTING SITE BOUNDARY, LOCATION AND TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION WAS TAKEN
FROM SURVEY PROVIDED BY DAVID ALLEY, PLS.  EXISTING CONTOURS ARE SHOWN
AT 1' INTERVALS.  PROPOSED CONTOURS ARE SHOWN AT 1' INTERVALS.

2. ALL DEVELOPMENT SHALL CONFORM WITH THE FORSYTH COUNTY "UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE".

3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO EDGE OF PAVEMENT, FACE OF CURB AND FACE OF
BUILDING, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  VERIFY ALL BUILDING DIMENSIONS WITH
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION.

LD1-C / DCA

1"=1,000'

SHALLOWFORD RD

WILL
IAM

S R
D

US HWY 421

HE
RI

TA
GE

 D
R

MOCK GARDEN LN

LEWISVILLE CLEMMONS RD

LUCY LN

LUCY LN

AR
RO

W
 LE

AF
 D

R

WILLIAMS RD

SUNNY ACRES DR

BELNETTE DR

BROOKSIDE DR

NORTH ST

STYERS ST

GREAT

WAGON RDDAVID McKEE ST

BROOKWAY W DR

SITE

5,907 SF / 400 = 15 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED: 29 (INCL. 2 HC)

NEW
CONCRETE

DRIVE

NEW
CONCRETE
DRIVE

EXISTING OVERHEAD
POWER LINES TO BE

RELOCATED

NEW WATER
SERVICES

EXISTING WATER
SERVICE TO BE UTILIZED

PROPOSED
STORMWATER

CONTROL
MEASURE

NEW
BUILDING
5,907 SF

EXISTING
FIRE
HYDRANT

STUDIO & RESTAUANT WITHOUT DRIVE THROUGH

POSSIBLE CONCRETE
ISLAND EXTENSION

1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
15



LEWISVILLE PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
6510 Shallowford Road | P.O. Box 547 
Lewisville, NC 27023-0547 
Voice: 336-945-1028 | Email: lcochran@lewisvillenc.net 
Website: lewisvillenc.net/planning-zoning 

 

 
LEWSIVLLE TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE (TRC) 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
HERITAGE CROSSING 

 
 

Title and Number:  Heritage Crossing, Rezoning L-114 

Current Tax PIN(s):  5875-71-2659, 5875-61-7353 

Location:    Wilson Rd-Heritage Dr-Shallowford Rd Roundabout 

Type of Development:   Non-Residential, Office, Retail, Services 

Total Acreage:   2.28 Acres 

Current Zoning:   RS-20 (Proposed Rezoning to LD1-C) 

Project Density:   24.85% BUA (Phase I) 

Surveyor/Engineer:  Allied Design 
     4720 Kester Mill Rd 
     Winston-Salem, NC 27103 
     (336) 765-2377 
 
Owner/Agent:   Ruth M Boose 
     3709 Waldenbrook Rd 
     Greensboro, NC 27407 

  

mailto:lcochran@lewisvillenc.net


LEWISVILLE PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
6510 Shallowford Road | P.O. Box 547 
Lewisville, NC 27023-0547 
Voice: 336-945-1028 | Email: lcochran@lewisvillenc.net 
Website: lewisvillenc.net/planning-zoning 

Lewisville Planning, Lynn Cochran lcochran@lewisvillenc.net 
• Alternative Compliance consideration requested based on the configuration of

the lot adjacent to the traffic circle, variable front property lines and the
necessary placement of the Shallowford Road driveway, particularly as these
issues relate to the build-to-line (BTL) and associated standards.

• The 15-foot Type II bufferyard shown on the upper right corner of the site plan
should be a minimum of 20 feet according to the general bufferyard
requirements of the UDO.

• *New UDO Tree Preservation Requirement (B.3-3.7, pp. 374-375): a tree
preservation plan must be submitted with the final plat. Please review the section
noted for the specific regulations. The Tree Protection Plan must show the
location of existing trees on the property, including those that are to be
removed, the limits of disturbance, the Critical Root Zone (CRZ) of trees to be
preserved, and the tree protection fence/barrier.

Addressing, Matthew Hamby hambyme@forsyth.cc 
• The site address has been assigned – 6732 Shallowford Road

Fire Marshal, Mark Johnson johnsome@forsyth.cc 
• Provide documentation of measured fire flows from hydrants to demonstrate

that available water flows meet or exceed the needed fire flow requirements
cited in approved plans as required by 507.3.  You may schedule a hydrant fire
flow test through the Utilities Field Operations Division by calling City Link (311 or
336-727-8000).

• If the building is equipped with a fire alarm, sprinkler system or special hazard,
a Knox Box will be required. You can order one online at Knoxbox.com, just make
sure you select the Forsyth County fire option. Contact our office if you have
questions 336-703-2550. (506.1)

• If applicable, separate permits would be required for fire alarms, sprinklers,
automatic extinguishing systems, tanks, etc.

NCDOT, David Bankhead dpbankhead@ncdot.gov 
• The NCDOT does not have a single, “published” standard for new driveway

connections related to the exact distance requirement from roundabouts. We
do require a minimum distance of 100’ from traditional intersections. With that
said, a site-specific assessment is provided and the approval will ultimately be
determined by the District Engineer.

• Notes (Shallowford) – Design/layout will need to illustrate adequate safe
distance between the driveway connection and roundabout intersection (and
pedestrian crossing) to be considered or accepted.

• Please provide more information about proposed building site details.

mailto:lcochran@lewisvillenc.net
mailto:lcochran@lewisvillenc.net
mailto:hambyme@forsyth.cc
mailto:johnsome@forsyth.cc
mailto:dpbankhead@ncdot.gov


LEWISVILLE PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
6510 Shallowford Road | P.O. Box 547 
Lewisville, NC 27023-0547 
Voice: 336-945-1028 | Email: lcochran@lewisvillenc.net 
Website: lewisvillenc.net/planning-zoning 

• NCDOT driveway permit not required for connection on Heritage Drive (non-
system).

Stormwater, Stantec, Kevin Kubiak kevin.kubiak@stantec.com 
• Efforts shall be taken to mitigate any adverse effects on downstream structures,

culverts, properties, etc.
• This is a high-density development project
• Submit hydrologic-hydraulic analysis on drainage system for 2-, 10- and 25-year

24-hours storms. Show pre- and post-development comparison
• Submit hydrologic-hydraulic analysis on SCM for the 25-year, 6-hour storm.

Utilities, Tiffany Easter, tiffanyal@cityofws.org 
• Submit plans for review/approval through IDT system. Any existing connections

not intended for reuse must be terminated at the main. Any new water
connections will require a payment of system development fee for both water
and wastewater. Water meters purchased through COWS. All water connections
will require a Reduced Pressure Assembly Backflow Preventer matching the
meter size. Hazard determined at permitting process. Minimum 1,000-gallon
exterior in-ground grease interceptor will be required if there’s a kitchen. Size
may be larger depending upon kitchen fixture schedule.  No water/sewer
connections located inside a driveway.

mailto:lcochran@lewisvillenc.net
mailto:kevin.kubiak@stantec.com
mailto:tiffanyal@cityofws.org


30' - 0" 50' - 0" 30' - 0"

110' - 0"

40
' -

 0
"

22' - 3" 26' - 9" 12' - 0" 26' - 9" 22' - 3"

65
' -

 2
"

46
' -

 6
"

110' - 0"

71
' -

 2
"

WWW.HOKEDESIGNGROUP.COM

HOKE
DESIGN
GROUP

A1

67
24

 S
H

AL
LO

W
FO

R
D

 R
O

AD
LE

W
IS

VI
LL

E,
 N

O
R

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A

SH
AL

LO
W

FO
R

D
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G

 3/16" = 1'-0"1 Ground Level RE
VI
SI
ON

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DA
TE



Ground Level
0' - 0"

Coffee Shop Eave
Height

14' - 11"

Roof High Point
25' - 0"

Roof High Point
25' - 0"

T.O. BLDG SLAB
0' - 4"

UPS Parapet Height
18' - 4"

111' - 0"

22' - 3" 65' - 6" 22' - 3"

5"
 / 

1'
-0

"

Ground Level
0' - 0"

Ground Level
0' - 0"

Coffee Shop Eave
Height

14' - 11"

Roof High Point
25' - 0"

Roof High Point
25' - 0"

30' - 0" 50' - 0"

30' - 0"

T.O. BLDG SLAB
0' - 4"

T.O. BLDG SLAB
0' - 4"

111' - 0"

UPS Parapet Height
18' - 4"

5"
 / 

1'
-0

"

WWW.HOKEDESIGNGROUP.COM

HOKE
DESIGN
GROUP

A4

67
24

 S
H

AL
LO

W
FO

R
D

 R
O

AD
LE

W
IS

VI
LL

E,
 N

O
R

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A

SH
AL

LO
W

FO
R

D
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G

 3/16" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING ELEVATION - SOUTH

 3/16" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING ELEVATION - NORTH

RE
VI
SI
ON

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DA
TE

4

21 1

1.
2.
3.

BRICK
HARDY SIDING
STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF 
OR BLACK ARCHITECTURAL 
SHINGLE

3

21 1

3

21 1



Ground Level
0' - 0"

Roof High Point
25' - 0"

Roof High Point
25' - 0"

T.O. BLDG SLAB
0' - 4"

UPS Parapet Height
18' - 4"

72' - 2"

31' - 2" 40' - 0"

7"
 / 

1'
-0

"

Ground Level
0' - 0"

Coffee Shop Eave
Height

14' - 11"

Roof High Point
25' - 0"

Roof High Point
25' - 0"

T.O. BLDG SLAB
0' - 4"

46' - 6" 24' - 8"

72' - 2"

7"
 / 

1'
-0

"

5" / 1'-0"

WWW.HOKEDESIGNGROUP.COM

HOKE
DESIGN
GROUP

A5

67
24

 S
H

AL
LO

W
FO

R
D

 R
O

AD
LE

W
IS

VI
LL

E,
 N

O
R

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A

SH
AL

LO
W

FO
R

D
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G

 3/16" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING ELEVATION - EAST

 3/16" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING ELEVATION - WEST

RE
VI
SI
ON

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DA
TE

1.
2.
3.

BRICK
HARDY SIDING
STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF 
OR BLACK ARCHITECTURAL 
SHINGLE

3

2 1

3

2 1



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE PLANNING 
CONSISTENCY AND REASONABLENESS DETERMINATIONS 

The Board has reviewed Zoning Map Amendment L-114, rezoning from Residential 
Single-Family (RS-20) to the Lewisville Downtown 1 Conditional Zoning District. As 
required by NCGS § 160D, the Board makes the following findings: 

1. Consistency. This application is found to be consistent with the Lewisville
Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan because:

• Retail, service and institutional uses are considered part of the fabric of
Downtown Lewisville.

• Development of currently vacant lots in the DCA is strongly encouraged
by the Comprehensive Plan.

• Land Use Objective 2 prioritizes developing “Downtown Lewisville as a
center of community identity, encouraging small businesses and a mix of
housing types.” (p. 129)

2. The proposed action is found to be reasonable because:

• Measuring (+/-) 2.33 acres, the size of this property is typical of the area.
• Rezoning from RS-20 & LD1-C will allow uses that are more compatible

with the mixed nature of existing uses in this area, while maintaining the
character of adjacent and nearby properties and preserving Lewisville’s
small-town feel.

• The proposed establishment provides a valuable service to the residents
of Lewisville.



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE PLANNING 
DRAFT MOTION TO APPROVE OR DENY 

APPROVE 

“I move to APPROVE this request of this request based upon the Consistency & 
Reasonable Determinations Statements that are included in the Board agenda 
packet and as may be amended.”  

DENY 

“I move to DENY this request based upon the Consistency & Reasonable 
Determinations Statements that are included in the Board agenda packet and as 
may be amended.” 



RESOLUTION 2025-047 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
CALL PUBLIC HEARING FOR AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clemmons desires to have an annexation agreement with the Town of Lewisville; 

WHEREAS, Chapter 160A, Article 4A, Part 6 of the North Carolina Statutes permits municipalities to enter into 
annexation agreements provided adequate public notice is provided;  

WHEREAS, General Statute 160A.58.24(c) and 160A-31(c) requires that a notice of the public hearing be 
published once in a newspaper having general circulation in the municipality at least 10 days prior to the date 
of the public hearing;   

WHEREAS, in coordination with the Town of Clemmons the Lewisville public hearing should be 
conducted December 11, 2025; and  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL sets a public hearing to be 
conducted at 6:00 PM in the Lewisville Town Hall Council Chamber on Thursday, December 11, 2025 for 
the purpose of receiving public comment concerning a proposed annexation agreement with the Town 
of Clemmons. 

Adopted this the 13th day of November 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Angela Lord, Town Clerk 

Attachment #8



NORTH CAROLINA 

FORSYTH COUNTY 

CLEMMONS/LEWISVILLE ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, the Village of Clemmons and the Town of Lewisville, (the participating 

governmental units), duly incorporated municipalities under the laws of the State of North 

Carolina, each desire to eliminate uncertainty among residents and property owners in 

unincorporated areas adjacent to them and desire to improve planning by public and private 

interests in such areas; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 160A, Article 4A, Part 6 Annexation Agreements of the North 

Carolina General Statutes (hereinafter referred to as the Statutes) authorizes municipalities to enter 

into binding agreements concerning future annexation in order to enhance orderly planning by such 

municipalities, as well as residents and property owners in areas adjacent thereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTICIPATING GOVERNMENTAL UNITS AGREE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1. This Agreement is executed pursuant Article 4A, Part 6 of N.C.G.S. Chapter 160A.

2. This Agreement shall terminate twenty years after its effective date unless earlier

terminated in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 7 hereof 

3. A.   The Village of Clemmons shall not annex any area north of Styers Ferry Road as shown

on Exhibit A, Annexation Map.

B. The Town of Lewisville shall not annex any area south of Styers Ferry Road or their

existing southern boundary as shown on Exhibit A, Annexation Map.

4. The effective date of this Agreement is______________ ,  this Agreement  having been

entered into after Public Hearings held by the Clemmons Village Council and the Town Council of 

Lewisville, and passage of an ordinance approving the Agreement by each of the participating 

governmental units. 

5. Should, during the term of this Agreement, either participating governmental unit

propose any annexation of areas subject to this Agreement, then in such event(s), said participating 

governmental unit shall give written notice to the other participating governmental unit at least sixty 

(60) days prior to the adoption of the annexation ordinance. Such notice shall describe the area to be

annexed by a legible map clearly and accurately showing the boundaries of the area to be annexed in

relation to the areas described in this Agreement, and further, in relation to roads, streams and any

other prominent geographical features.  Such notice shall not be effective for more than 180 days.

This time period may be waived by the notified governmental unit in writing.



6. This Agreement may be modified or terminated by subsequent written agreement(s) 

entered into by the participating governmental units; however, any subsequent agreement(s) shall  

be approved by Ordinance only after public hearings as provided in N.C.G.S. Chapter 160A, 

Section 3l(c). 

 
7. This Agreement may be terminated unilaterally by either participating governmental 

unit, or either participating governmental unit may withdraw from this Agreement, by repealing 

the Ordinance which approved this Agreement and providing not less than five years' written 

notice to the other participating governmental unit. Upon the expiration of the five-year period, 

this Agreement shall terminate. 

 
8. From and after the effective date of this Agreement, neither participating governmental 

unit shall adopt an annexation ordinance as to all or any portion of an area in violation of the Act or 

this Agreement. 

 
9. Nothing in the Act nor this Agreement shall be construed to authorize the annexation of 

any area which is not otherwise subject to annexation under applicable law by either of the 

participating governmental units, unless both participating governments consent to the annexation.  

 
10. Nothing in the Act nor this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the annexation of 

any area which is not subject to this Agreement by either of the participating governmental units. 

 
11. Either participating governmental unit which shall believe that a violation of the Act or 

this Agreement has occurred, shall have available to it all remedies and relief authorized by the Act 

in addition to such remedies or relief as are authorized by other applicable law. 

 
12. All notices, requests and other communications hereunder shall be deemed to have 

been given when deposited in the United States mail in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, 

certified mail, and addressed as follows: 
 

Village of Clemmons 

Village Manager 

Village of Clemmons 

3715 Clemmons Rd 

Clemmons, NC 27012 
 

Town of Lewisville 

Town Manager 

6510 Shallowford Rd 

Lewisville, NC 27023 

 
13. This writing contains the entire Agreement between the participating governmental 

units, and there is merged herein all prior and collateral representations, promises and conditions 

in connection with the Annexation Agreement. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayors of the Village of Clemmons and the Town of 

Lewisville, the participating governmental units, by and under the authority granted by their 

respective municipalities in Ordinances Approving this Agreement, have hereunder executed this 

Agreement, in duplicate, to become effective as provided in paragraph 4 above. 

This ________ day of __________, 2025 

VILLAGE OF CLEMMONS 

__________________________________ 

Michael K. Rogers, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Lisa Shortt, Village Clerk 

Town of Lewisville 

__________________________________ 

     Michael Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Angela Lord, Town Clerk 



Legend

Lewisville Clemmons
Annexation Boundary

Corporate Limits

Municipality

Lewisville

Clemmons

Forsyth County
Boundary

0 2,500 5,0001,250 Feet

. LEWISVILLE-CLEMMONS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT



 

1 

RESOLUTION 2025-048 TO ESTABLISH A POLICY FOR THE FORMALIZATION OF THE TOWN 
COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP 

WHEREAS, the in its Legislative capacity, the Town Council oversees administration of the Town of 
Lewisville;  

WHEREAS, an Administrative Group, is normally made up of the Mayor, the Mayor Pro-Tem, and one 
other member who has served on the Council previously or has experience directing a staff;  

WHEREAS, the Administrative Group as assigned by the Town Mayor, shall meet with the Town Manager 
at least two times a year to evaluate the performance of the Town Manager, to review the goals set by 
the Town Manager, and to do a mid-year review to ensure goals are being met;  

WHEREAS, the Administrative Group shall advise the full Governing Body on any salary adjustments, 
merit bonuses or other benefits for the Town Manager;  

WHEREAS, the Administrative Group shall review and revise, if necessary, the term of the employment 
contract upon renewal; and once set, the contract shall go before the full Governing Body for approval; 

WHEREAS, should a performance or other job-related concern arise, the Administrative Group shall 
work with the Town Manager to resolve said concern; however, if said concern cannot be resolved, the 
matter will go before the entire Council in a closed session;  

WHEREAS, no one member of the Administrative Group can direct the Town Manager; 

WHEREAS, other than the Town Manager, the Administrative Group does not have the authority to 
direct staff;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the 
establishment of the Town of Lewisville Administrative Group. 

Adopted this 13th day of November 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Angela Lord, Town Clerk 

Attachment #9



DRAFT
CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

10-00-4120-3513

General Fund - 

Administration - Fred Moser 

Property Maintenance

65,000.00$   10-00-3990-9000
General Fund - Fund Balance 

Appropriated
65,000.00$   

65,000.00$   65,000.00$   

EXPLANATION: Fred Moser property improvements.

RECOMMENDED BY:  Pam Orrell, Town Finance Director

Approved and effective upon adoption this the 13th day of November, 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

ATTEST:

Mike Horn, Mayor

Angela Lord, Town Clerk

Budget Amendment # 3

Pam Orrell, Finance Director

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE
Budget Amendment Ordinance 2025-033 

Amending Budget Ordinance 2025-001

FINANCE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

Attachment #10



DRAFT
CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

10-00-4120-3513

General Fund - 

Administration - Fred Moser 

Property Maintenance

10,000.00$   10-00-3990-9000
General Fund - Fund Balance 

Appropriated
10,000.00$   

10,000.00$   10,000.00$   

EXPLANATION: To abandon (2) wells on Fred Moser property.

RECOMMENDED BY:  Pam Orrell, Town Finance Director

Approved and effective upon adoption this the 13th day of November, 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

ATTEST:

Mike Horn, Mayor

Angela Lord, Town Clerk

Budget Amendment # 4

Pam Orrell, Finance Director

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE

Budget Amendment Ordinance 2025-034

Amending Budget Ordinance 2025-001

FINANCE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

Attachment #11



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: 1. ORDINANCE 2025-035

SUBJECT: 1. ORDINANCE 2025-035 TO AMEND THE PROJECT
ORDINANCE FOR THE ROUNDABOUT AT
LEWISVILLE-VIENNA ROAD AND ROBINHOOD ROAD

2. RESOLUTION 2025-050 TO APPROVE CONTRACT

WITH BW INFRASTRUCTURE, LLC

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 11/13/2025 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Preliminary engineering, purchase of right-of-way, and utility relocation are complete for the 

construction of the new roundabout at the intersection of Lewisville-Vienna Road and 

Robinhood Road. Town Council has approved the contract with Volkert, Inc. for CEI 

(construction engineering and inspection) services. Bids have been opened for the construction 

phase of the project and the winning bid came from BW Infrastructure, LLC. Following is a 

revised cost estimate for the roundabout project:     

Attachment #12



Estimated Expenses:

Preliminary Engineering 501,616.93$       

Right-of-Way 337,282.07$       

Utility Relocation 280,637.89$       

CEI (Construction Engineering and Inspection) 358,217.24$       

Construction 3,236,178.90$    

Contingency (15% of construction cost) 500,000.00$       

Total Estimated Expenses 5,213,933.03$    

Total Current Budget 2,801,485.00$    

Amendment to Capital Project 

Ordinance
2,412,448.03$   

The following amendment is proposed to bring the current budget in alignment with the revised 

cost estimates: 

Expenses G/L Account Currrent Budget Amendment
Amended 

Budget

Construction 53-00-5600-6000 2,006,631.00$ 2,087,765.14$ 4,094,396.14$ 

Right-of-Way/Utility Relocation 53-00-5600-6001 473,450.00$    144,469.96$    617,919.96$    

Preliminary Engineering 53-00-5600-6002 321,404.00$    180,212.93$    501,616.93$    

Total 2,801,485.00$ 2,412,448.03$ 5,213,933.03$ 

Revenues G/L Account Currrent Budget Amendment
Amended 

Budget

Transfer from General Fund 53-00-3980-0000 2,801,485.00$ 718,692.81$    3,520,177.81$ 

Transfer from Gateway Project 

Capital Project Fund
53-00-3980-0001 -$         1,026,148.45$ 1,026,148.45$ 

Transfer from Lewisville-

Vienna Multipurpose Path 

Capital Project Fund

53-00-3980-0002 -$         384,786.16$    384,786.16$    

Transfer from Shallowford 

Road Sidewalk CMAQ Capital 

Project Fund

53-00-3980-0003 -$         282,820.61$    282,820.61$    

Total 2,801,485.00$ 2,412,448.03$ 5,213,933.03$ 



The following funding is available from the federal government to pay for 80% of the costs of the 

project: 

Total Estimated Project 

Cost
80% Federal Funded 20% Town Funded

5,213,933.03$  4,171,146.42$  1,042,786.61$  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION: 

1. Staff recommends that the Town Council increase the budget for the roundabout project

by $2,412,448.03.

2. Staff recommends that the Town Council approve the contract with BW Infrastructure,

LLC in the amount of $3,236,178.90.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

See Background/Summary Section above. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. ORDINANCE 2025-035 AMENDING THE ROUNDABOUT AT LEWISVILLE-

VIENNA ROAD AND ROBINHOOD ROAD CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE

2. RESOLUTION 2025-050 APPROVING CONTRACT WITH BW

INFRASTRUCTURE, LLC

Original grant 1,016,000$     

Supplemental funding #1 1,225,188$     

Supplemental funding #2 2,466,000$     

 Total federal funding 4,707,188$     



ORDINANCE 2025-035 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 

ROUNDABOUT AT LEWISVILLE-VIENNA ROAD AND ROBINHOOD ROAD CAPITAL 

PROJECTS FUND 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council established the Capital Project Ordinance 2019-027 for 

the purchase of right-of-way, utility relocation, design, environmental documentation, and 

construction in the conversion of the existing intersection to a single lane roundabout at SR 1308 

(Lewisville-Vienna Road) and SR 1348 (Robinhood Road) in the Town of Lewisville; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville engaged Kimley Horn and Associates to provide professional 

services on the project that includes design, traffic control, pavement marking plans, hydraulics, 

erosion control, location surveys, signing, planning, natural environment, public involvement, 

utilities coordination, sub-surface utility engineering (SUE), and right-of-way; 

WHEREAS, appropriations were originally made in the amount of $1,270,000 for this project; 

WHEREAS, the Town was awarded supplemental federal funding in the amount of $1,225,188. 

This amount added to the original federal funding amount of $1,016,000 brought the Town’s total 

federal award to $2,241,188; 

WHEREAS, due to the rising cost of construction and other costs, there was a need to amend 

the budget to cover the remaining phases of the project in the following amounts:  

Preliminary Engineering 53-00-5600-6002  $201,404 

Right-of-Way/Utilities  53-00-5600-6001  $223,450 

Construction  53-00-5600-6000 $1,106,631 

Total Expenditures $1,531,485 

WHEREAS, the Town has been awarded additional supplemental funding in the amount of 

$2,466,000 which brings the total funding from the federal government to $4,707,188; 

WHEREAS, the Town is prepared to move on to the construction phase of the project; 

WHEREAS, the Town has engaged Volkert, Inc. to provide CEI services at an amount not to 

exceed $358,217.24; 

WHEREAS, the Town has issued a request for proposals for the construction of the roundabout 

and the winning bid was provided by BW Infrastructure at a price not to exceed $3,236,178.90; 



WHEREAS, due to the rising cost of construction it is necessary to amend the budget for the 

project; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the Town of Lewisville desires to increase the budget 

for the roundabout project as follows. 

The following amounts are appropriated to complete this project: 

Expenses G/L Account Currrent Budget Amendment Amended Budget

Construction 53-00-5600-6000 2,006,631.00$   2,087,765.14$   4,094,396.14$   

Right-of-Way/Utility Relocation 53-00-5600-6001 473,450.00$  144,469.96$   617,919.96$  

Preliminary Engineering 53-00-5600-6002 321,404.00$  180,212.93$   501,616.93$  

Total 2,801,485.00$   2,412,448.03$   5,213,933.03$   

The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project: 

Revenues G/L Account Currrent Budget Amendment Amended Budget

Transfer from General Fund 53-00-3980-0000 2,801,485.00$    718,692.81$   3,520,177.81$    

Transfer from Gateway Project 

Capital Project Fund
53-00-3980-0001 -$   1,026,148.45$    1,026,148.45$    

Transfer from Lewisville-Vienna 

Multipurpose Path Capital Project 

Fund

53-00-3980-0002 -$   384,786.16$   384,786.16$   

Transfer from Shallowford Road 

Sidewalk CMAQ Capital Project 

Fund

53-00-3980-0003 -$   282,820.61$   282,820.61$   

Total 2,801,485.00$    2,412,448.03$    5,213,933.03$    



 

 

 

The Finance Director is hereby directed to maintain within the Capital Projects Fund sufficient 

detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the contract agreements and state 

regulations. 

 

The Finance Director is directed to report, on a monthly basis, on the financial status of this 

project. 

 

Copies of this capital projects ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk of the Governing Body, 

and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Director for direction in carrying out this project. 

 

Adopted this the 13th day of November, 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:       _____________________________ 

        Mike Horn, Mayor 

_________________________ 

Angela Lord, Town Clerk 

 



RESOLUTION 2025-050 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AWARD CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE OF THE 

LEWISVILLE VIENNA AND ROBINHOOD ROUNDABOUT 

WHEREAS, the preliminary engineering, purchase of right-of-way, and utility relocation are complete for 
the construction of the new roundabout at the intersection of Lewisville Vienna and Robinhood 
roundabout; 

WHEREAS, the Town Council approved a contract with Volkert, Inc. for the construction, engineering and 
inspection (CEI) services;   

WHEREAS, bids have been opened for the construction phase of the project with the winning bid being 
BW Infrastructure, LLC; 

WHEREAS, town staff recommend the Town Council approve the contract with BW Infrastructure, LLC in 
the amount of $3,236,178.90; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL authorizes the Town Manager 
to award a contract and to execute other documents associated with BW Infrastructure, LLC in the amount 
of $3,236,178.90 for the construction of the Lewisville Vienna Robinhood roundabout. 

Approved and effective this the 13th day of November 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Angela Lord, Town Clerk 

Attachment #13



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2025-049 

SUBJECT: TRAFFIC MITIGATION, PHASE I, SHALLOWFORD LAKES 

PREPARED BY: JON HANNA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: NOVEMBER 13, 2025 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Upon request by the Shallowford Lakes Association Board, the Town devised a traffic mitigation plan to address 
speeding and cut-through traffic in the neighborhood. After extensive cooperation with the Board and review by 
the Public Safety Technical Review Committee, a plan was devised that included three speed cushion installations, 
one on Riverwood Drive, one on Heatherford Drive, and one on Meadow Lake Drive, along with new painted Stop 
bars at the intersections of these streets. Neighborhood canvassing was performed by the HOA Board which 
exhibited overwhelming support for the plan and far exceeded the minimum percentages. 

This resolution allows the Public Works Department to install the speed cushion structures and all associated 
signage in the Town of Lewisville right-of-way. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION : 

Staff recommends Resolution 2025-049 be approved by Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The installation will be performed by Public Works staff. The cost of the manufactured RubberForm speed cushion 

product as well as all materials and additional signage will be approximately $6700. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution 2025-049 
Map of site with installation locations 

Attachment #14



RESOLUTION 2025-049 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
APPROVING SPEED CUSHIONS FOR THE SHALLOWFORD LAKES NEIGHBORHOOD 

WHEREAS, On August 8, 2024, the Town of Lewisville adopted Resolution 2024-036 for the Residential 
Traffic Control Policy;  

WHEREAS, Shallowford Lakes Association requested installation of speed cushions; canvassed the 58 
homes affected; and received over 85% responses in the affirmative, surpassing the 65% requirement;  

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville Public Safety Technical Review Committee, the Lewisville Fire 
Department, and the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office reviewed and recommend the installation of a first 
phase of three speed cushions, with one on Riverwood Drive, one on Heatherford Drive, and one on 
Meadow Lake Drive; along with newly painted Stop bars at the intersections of these three streets; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the installation of 
three speed cushions and new painted Stop bars in the Shallowford Lakes neighborhood. 

Adopted and effective this the 13th day of November 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Angela Lord, Town Clerk 



RESOLUTION 2025-042 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZE AN AMENDMENT TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 

LEWISVILLE AND WINSTON SALEM/FORSYTH COUNTY UTILITIES FOR CONSTRUCTION COST 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville entered into an interlocal agreement in November 2022 for 
the design, permitting and reconstruction of the Lewisville Lift Station;  

WHEREAS, due to supply and demands, in the last few of years, there has been a significant rise 
in construction cost;  

WHEREAS, construction cost necessitates an amendment to the interlocal agreement to 
approximately $7,270,430.43; and 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the Town of Lewisville authorize an 
amendment to the interlocal agreement with and the Town Manager is authorized to sign said 
agreement with Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Utilities for construction cost of the Lewisville 
Lift Station. 

Adopted this the 13th day of November 2025 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Angela Lord, Town Clerk 

Attachment #15


	00 - 11.13.2025 Agenda
	01 - 2025-046 - Res - Sept 30 2025 Month Ending Financials
	01A - Financial Report 3 Months Ended September 2025 (1)
	02 -10-06-2025 DRAFT TC Briefing minutes
	03 - 10-09-2025 DRAFT TC Meeting Minutes
	04 - IOOTRLIAGPTL Nomination Cliff Lewis
	04A - Certificate Cliff Lewis- IOOTRLIAGPTL
	05 - Lewisville Beautification Committee Applicants
	Lorick LBC Application
	Rivas LBC application

	06 -2025-031 Ord - PH - Amend for Three Text for UDO L-170 
	06A - UDO L-170 Agenda Item Packet (Final 2025.11.5)
	UDO L-170 Agenda Item Packet.pdf
	UDO L-170(b) Tree Preservation TA (Final).pdf
	UDO L-170(B) REFINING TREE PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS
	CURRENT 3-3.7. Tree Preservation Requirements
	CHANGES
	PROPOSED 3-3.7. Tree Preservation STANDARDS



	07 - 2025-032 Ord - PH - Amend Zone Map L-114 Rezoning Ordinance
	07A - L-114 Agenda Item Packet 2025.11.13 TC
	Heritage Crossing Site Elevations Revised 2025.9.3.pdf
	A1 - First Floor
	A4 - Elevations
	A5 - Elevations


	08 - 2025-047 - Res - Call PH - Annex Agreement with Clemmons (2)
	08A - AnnexAgree_Lville_VoC_20250818 (2)
	08B - Lewisville Clemmons Annexation Agreement Map 2025.8.22
	09 - 2025-048 - RES- POLICY TO ESTABLISH ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
	10 - 2025-033 Ord - Budget Amendment Fred Moser Property Improvements
	11 - 2025-034 - Ord -  Budget Amendment  Fred Moser Property Well Abandonment
	12 - Staff Report - Amend Roundabout Project Ordinance
	12A - 2025-035 - Ord - Capital Project Ordinance Roundabout L-V and Robinhood
	13 - 2025-050 - Res -BW Infrastructure LLC Contract Roundabout
	14 - Staff Report Shall. Lakes 11-13-25
	14A - 2025-049 Res - Speed Cushions Shallowford Lakes Neighborhood
	15 -2025-042- Res - Lewisville lift station interlocal agreement



